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CARLISLE

City in the County of Cumbria

The first written record is that St. Cuthbert visited the city in 685AD, when shown a Roman fountain — still functioning.

Luguvallium was the Roman name for Carlisle. William Rufus visited it in 1092 and Carlisle became part of England.

The Guilds were first mentioned (though probably in existence before) a Charter of Henry II, after the City was recovered from the Scots. Initially the Guild members would provide a basis for local government, as well as regulating their own affairs. However, later there were arguments, and litigation ensued with the Crown and civic authorities, mainly over the application of revenues and tolls.

The Guilds’ voting powers led to multiple admissions, including outsiders; and to the notorious ‘Mushroom Elections’ as part of the Parliamentary power struggle between the Lowther dynasty and other local magnates. The former’s apparent electoral success was overturned by the House of Commons Select Committee, whose decisions established the male hereditary principle, that Freemen must be the sons of Freemen. Freedom by apprenticeship has lapsed.
The Freemen’s Guilds were eight in number:

Butchers

Merchants

Shoemakers (or Cordwainers)

Skinners & Glovers

Smiths

Tailors

Tanners

Weavers

Only the first four are now active. These meet at Redness (Guild) Hall in the Greenmarket. Redness Hall is a 3-storied timber frame building, built in 1377 — the only one left in Carlisle. It was given by Richard de Redness to the City and contains eight rooms, one for each of the original 8 Guilds. After 1900 there was a decline of interest and the Guildhall became neglected and shabby. An agreement was drawn up and signed by representatives of the Freemen and the Town Clerk for the City, to the effect that the Corporation would maintain the building; but in the event of a guild not meeting for three consecutive years, their room should revert to the City. There was extensive restoration in 1978 - 9. The Corporation now owns four of the Guild Chambers. The remaining Guilds have their separate rooms in the upper floors where they display their plate etc. The other parts of the building are used by Tulle House Museum for Corporation relics of an appropriate era; i.e. – 2 silver racing bells, Elizabethan measures and the iron bound muniment chest circa 1400. 

The procedure of admission to the Guild is through the Master of the Guild, who applies to the Mayor , submits the name and proofs to the Town Clerk, and on a date approved by all there is an Admission at Redness Hall, followed by the Mayor’s confirmation at the Civic Centre. No indenture of trade or apprenticeship of any kind is entailed in the proceedings. There are no fees.

The Master of the Guild of Shoemakers or Cordwainers has a current register dating from 1799 to the present day with the names and dates of all Freemen admitted to the Guild, together with the Rules, the Oath and the accounts.”

The County Records Office at Carlisle Castle has the registers of admission of Freemen between 1612 and 1835 and the Parliamentary Voting Lists include annual lists of Freemen between 1835 and 1890. Original records of the Tailors’, Shoemakers’, Smiths’ and Merchants’ Gilds are also available in the County Records Office. They have complete copies of the records of all Gilds up to 1786.

The “Dormont Book” 1561 is still in existence. It records on pages 47, 48 and 49 the Oaths of the Mayor’s Bailiffs, Chamberlains, Clerks, Sergeant, Attorney, Coroner and Freemen. It also gives in full the bye-laws. The Merchant Guild has three books. They include the Rules of the Guild. Records for the Weavers, Tailors and Tanners are with the Jackson Library, Carlisle.

A reminder of the Guilds’ part in the religious life of the city, with their Mystery plays and Saints festivals, is in their meeting on Ascension Day, when their banners are displayed from the upper windows of Redness Hall.
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